
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF NEWBERG COUNCIL AGENDA 

MARCH 5, 2012 
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 
 
 

Mission Statement 
 

The City of Newberg serves its citizens, promotes safety, and maintains a healthy community. 
 

Vision Statement 
 

Newberg will cultivate a healthy, safe environment where citizens can work, play and grow in a friendly, 
dynamic and diverse community valuing partnerships and opportunity. 

 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

(30 minutes maximum, which may be extended at the Mayor’s discretion, with an opportunity to speak 
for no more than 5 minutes per speaker allowed) 

 
VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2012-2991 authorizing the city manager to execute 
an Intergovernmental Agreement with the State of Oregon for right-of-way services for the N. 
College Street Sidewalk and Bike Lanes Improvement Project.  (Pgs. 3-24)

 
2. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2012-2992 authorizing the city manager to 

negotiate a contract change order with First Cascade Corporation for the Fire Station 20 Remodel 
Project.  (Pgs. 25-29)

 
3. Consider a motion approving the February 6, 2012, City Council meeting minutes.  (Pgs. 31-37)

 
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

1. Consider a motion approving Ordinance No. 2012-2749 establishing a Newberg Affordable 
Housing Trust Fund. (Please bring material from the 2/21/2012 meeting) 

The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (March 5, 2012) Page 1 of 2 

  (Legislative Hearing – Second Reading) 

Page 1



The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (March 5, 2012) Page 2 of 2 

 
2. Consider a motion approving Ordinance No. 2012-2750 deferring the collection of System 

Development Charges for affordable housing projects.  (Pgs. 39-41)
(Legislative Hearing – First Reading) 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider a motion accepting the Chehalem Valley Chamber Visitor Information Center Second 
Quarter Report.  (Pgs. 43-46)

 
2. Consider a motion to modify the City Hall hours to 8:30-4:30 Monday through Friday.  (Pgs. 47-48)
 
3. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2012-2990 placing an operating levy on the May 4, 

2012, ballot to fund the local, 9-1-1/Emergency Communications Center.  (Pgs. 49-54)
 
IX. COUNCIL BUSINESS 

 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City 
Recorder’s office of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than 
48 hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact the City Recorder at (503) 537-1283. For TTY services please dial 711. 
 
 
 
Council accepts comments on agenda items during the meeting.  Fill out a form identifying the item you wish to speak on prior to the 
agenda item beginning and turn it into the City Recorder. The exception is land use hearings, which requires a specific public 
hearing process.  The City Council asks written testimony be submitted to the City Recorder before 5:00 p.m. on the preceding 
Thursday.  Written testimony submitted after that will be brought before the Council on the night of the meeting for consideration 
and a vote to accept or not accept it into the record. 

 

Page 2



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2991 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 5, 2012 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2012-2991 

SUBJECT:  Authorize the city manager to execute 
an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the 
State of Oregon to provide right-of-way services for 
the N. College Street Sidewalks and Bike Lanes 
Improvement Project. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Paul Chiu, Senior Engineer 
Dept.:  
File No.:  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2012-2991 authorizing the city manager to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(IGA) with the State of Oregon to provide right-of-way services for the N. College Street Sidewalks and 
Bike Lanes Improvement Project.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The City applied and received a Transportation Enhancement (TE) Grant to fund the N. College Street 
(Highway 219) pedestrian improvement project, which includes bike lanes and sidewalks, from Vermillion 
Street to Aldercrest Drive.  The current estimate for those improvements is over $900,000.00. 
 
As part of that project, it is necessary to acquire right-of-way from adjacent properties along College Street. 
 Typically ODOT would require their consultant to perform a full appraisal in order to acquire right-of-way. 
 However, if the work is done by ODOT staff, then a simple comparative market analysis could be done for 
this same right-of-way.  After discussing the options with ODOT, it became apparent that the City could see 
some costs saving by contracting with ODOT directly.  The IGA for those right-of-way services is attached 
as Exhibit “A” and by this reference incorporated.  Construction of this project is planned for spring/summer 
of 2013. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
Although the bulk of this improvement project is being paid with grant funds, the City is required to make a 
small contribution toward this project.  The City’s contribution estimated at $117,000.00 is budgeted under 
account number 18-5150-702165 in the 2011/2012 fiscal year budget.  Some cost savings is anticipated as 
ODOT (versus their consultant) will be performing the right-of-way services for this project. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 
This project provides a much needed pedestrian and bicyclist connection along a major state and City route 
in accordance with the City’s Transportation System Plan and the Newberg ADA/Pedestrian/Bike Route 
Improvement Plan. 
 
 

Page 3



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2991 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) WITH THE STATE OF 
OREGON TO PROVIDE RIGHT-OF-WAY SERVICES FOR THE N. 
COLLEGE STREET SIDEWALKS AND BIKE LANES IMPROVEMENT 
PROJECT   

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. On June 13, 2011, the City executed Agreement No. 27316 with the Oregon Department of 

Transportation (ODOT) to receive the State’s Transportation Enhancement (TE) Grant funding upon 
approval of Resolution No. 2011-2946.  On August 22, 2011, the agreement was amended to receive 
additional TE funding. 

 
2. Agreement No. 27316 stated that regardless of who performs the right-of-way tasks, a right-of-way 

services agreement shall be created by ODOT’s right-of-way office setting forth the responsibilities 
and tasks that must be accomplished by each party. 

 
3. During project scoping, City staff received information from ODOT that their consultant is required 

to perform a full appraisal to acquire right-of-way but ODOT’s staff is required to do only a simple 
comparative market analysis for the same right-of-way.  The City will save costs in choosing ODOT 
over their consultant to perform the right-of-way services for this project. 

 
4. On February 3, 2012, ODOT provided a final copy of the right-of-way services IGA to the City. 
 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The Newberg City Council does hereby authorize the city manager to execute an IGA with ODOT 
that provides the right-of-way services for the N. College Street Sidewalks and Bike Lanes 
Improvement Project.  The IGA is shown in Exhibit “A”, which is attached and by this reference 
hereby adopted. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: March 6, 2012. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 5th day of March, 2012. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 8th day of March, 2012. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2991 PAGE 1 

Page 4



R/W Services IGA (Revised June 2011) - 1 -

Misc. Contracts and Agreements 
No.27928

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
FOR RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES 

OR 219: Vermillion - Aldercrest Sidewalk and Bike Lanes

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the STATE OF 
OREGON, acting by and through its Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred 
to as “State”; and the CITY OF NEWBERG, acting by and through its elected officials, 
hereinafter referred to as “Agency,” both herein referred to individually or collectively as 
“Party” or “Parties.” 

RECITALS

1. By the authority granted in Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 190.110, 283.110, 
366.572 and 366.576, state agencies may enter into agreements with units of local 
government or other state agencies for the performance of any or all functions and 
activities that a Party to the agreement, its officers, or agents have the authority to 
perform.

2. By the authority granted in ORS 366.425, State may accept deposits of money or an 
irrevocable letter of credit from any county, city, road district, person, firm, or 
corporation for the performance of work on any public highway within the State. When 
said money or a letter of credit is deposited, State shall proceed with the Project. 
Money so deposited shall be disbursed for the purpose for which it was deposited. 

3. That certain Vermillion Street and Aldercrest Drive are City Streets under the 
jurisdiction and control of Agency and Agency may enter into an agreement for the 
acquisition of real property.

4. Oregon Route 219 (OR 219), is a part of the state highway system under the 
jurisdiction and control of the Oregon Transportation Commission (OTC). 

5. This Agreement shall define roles and responsibilities of the Parties regarding the real 
property to be used as part of right of way for road, street or construction of public 
improvement. The scope and funding may be further described in Local Agency 
Agreement, Transportation Enhancement Program Project Agreement number 27316. 
Hereinafter, all acts necessary to accomplish services in this Agreement shall be 
referred to as "Project." 

NOW THEREFORE, the premises being in general as stated in the foregoing Recitals, it is 
agreed by and between the Parties hereto as follows: 

TERMS OF AGREEMENT 

1. Under such authority, State and Agency agree to perform certain right of way activities 
shown in Special Provisions - Exhibit A, attached hereto and by this reference made a 
part hereof. If the State performs right of way services on behalf of the Agency, under 

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 5



27928
 

- 2 -

no conditions shall Agency's obligations for said services exceed a maximum of 
$117,000, including all expenses, unless agreed upon by both Parties. 

2. The work shall begin on the date all required signatures are obtained and shall be 
completed no later than December 31, 2014, on which date this Agreement 
automatically terminates unless extended by a fully executed amendment. 

3. The process to be followed by the Parties in carrying out this Agreement is set out in 
Exhibit A.

4. It is further agreed both Parties will strictly follow the rules, policies and procedures of 
the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 
as amended, ORS Chapter 35 and the “State Right of Way Manual”. 

STATE OBLIGATIONS 

1. State shall perform the work described in Special Provisions - Exhibit A.

2. With the exception of work related to appraisals, State shall not enter into any 
subcontracts for any of the work scheduled under this Agreement without obtaining 
prior written approval from Agency. 

3. If the State performs right of way services on behalf of the Agency, State shall perform 
the service under this Agreement as an independent contractor and shall be exclusively 
responsible for all costs and expenses related to its employment of individuals to 
perform the work under this Agreement including, but not limited to, retirement 
contributions, workers compensation, unemployment taxes, and state and federal 
income tax withholdings. 

4. State’s right of way contact person for this Project is Melissa J. Mallott, Right of Way 
Project Manager, 455 Airport Road SE, Building A, Salem, Oregon 97301-5397; (503) 
986-2772; email melissa.j.mallott@odot.state.or.us, or assigned designee upon 
individual’s absence.  State shall notify the other Party in writing of any contact changes 
during the term of this Agreement. 

AGENCY OBLIGATIONS 

1. Agency shall perform the work described in Special Provisions - Exhibit A.  

2. Agency certifies, at the time this Agreement is executed, that sufficient funds are 
available and authorized for expenditure to finance costs of this Agreement within 
Agency's current appropriation or limitation of current budget. Agency is willing and able 
to finance all, or its pro-rata share of all, costs and expenses incurred in the Project up 
to its maximum. 

3. Agency may utilize its own staff or subcontract any of the work scheduled under this 
Agreement provided Agency receives prior written approval of any staff, consultant or 
contractor by the State’s Region Right of Way office.

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 6



27928
 

- 3 -

4. Agency represents that this Agreement is signed by personnel authorized to do so on 
behalf of Agency. 

5. Agency’s right of way contact person for this Project is Paul Chiu, Senior Engineer, PO 
Box 970, Newberg, Oregon 97132; (503) 554-1751; paul.chiu@newbergoregon.gov, or 
assigned designee upon individual’s absence.  Agency shall notify the other Party in 
writing of any contact information changes during the term of this Agreement. 

PAYMENT FOR SERVICES AND EXPENDITURES: 

1. In consideration for the services performed by State (as identified in the attached 
Exhibit A), Agency agrees to pay or reimburse State a maximum amount of 
$117,000. Said maximum amount shall include reimbursement for all expenses, 
including travel expenses. Travel expenses shall be reimbursed to State in 
accordance with the current Oregon Department of Administrative Services’ rates. 
Any expenditure beyond federal participation will be from, or reimbursed from, 
Agency funds. Payment in Agency and/or federal funds in any combination shall not 
exceed said maximum, unless agreed upon by both Parties. 

2.  Agency agrees to reimburse salaries and payroll reserves of State employees working 
on Project, direct costs, costs of rental equipment used, and per-diem expenditures.

GENERAL PROVISIONS:

1. This Agreement may be terminated by either Party upon thirty (30) days' notice, in 
writing and delivered by certified mail or in person, under any of the following 
conditions:

a. If either Party fails to provide services called for by this Agreement within the time 
specified herein or any extension thereof.

b. If either Party fails to perform any of the other provisions of this Agreement or so 
fails to pursue the work as to endanger performance of this Agreement in 
accordance with its terms, and after receipt of written notice fails to correct such 
failures within ten (10) days or such longer period as may be authorized.  

c. If Agency fails to provide payment of its share of the cost of the Project. 

d. If State fails to receive funding, appropriations, limitations or other expenditure 
authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative 
discretion, to continue to make payments for performance of this Agreement. 

e. If federal or state laws, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in 
such a way that either the work under this Agreement is prohibited or State is 
prohibited from paying for such work from the planned funding source.

2. Any termination of this Agreement shall not prejudice any rights or obligations 
accrued to the Parties prior to termination. 

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 7



27928
 

- 4 -

3. Agency acknowledges and agrees that State, the Oregon Secretary of State's Office, 
the federal government, and their duly authorized representatives shall have access 
to the books, documents, papers, and records of Agency which are directly pertinent 
to this Agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and 
transcripts for a period of six (6) years after final payment. Copies of applicable 
records shall be made available upon request. Payment for costs of copies is 
reimbursable by State. 

4. Agency shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, regulations, executive 
orders and ordinances applicable to the work under this Agreement, including, 
without limitation, the provisions of ORS 279B.220, 279B.225, 279B.230, 279B.235 
and 279B.270 incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof. Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, Agency expressly agrees to comply with (i) 
Title VI of Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) Title V and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation 
Act of 1973; (iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and ORS 659A.142; (iv) 
all regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; 
and (v) all other applicable requirements of federal and state civil rights and 
rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations. 

5. All employers, that employ subject workers who work under this Agreement in the 
State of Oregon shall comply with ORS 656.017 and provide the required workers’ 
compensation coverage unless such employers are exempt under ORS 656.126. 
Employers Liability insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000 must be 
included.  Both Parties shall ensure that each of its subcontractors complies with 
these requirements. 

6. If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging a 
tort as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 ("Third Party Claim") against State or 
Agency with respect to which the other Party may have liability, the notified Party 
must promptly notify the other Party in writing of the Third Party Claim and deliver to 
the other Party a copy of the claim, process, and all legal pleadings with respect to 
the Third Party Claim. Each Party is entitled to participate in the defense of a Third 
Party Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing. 
Receipt by a Party of the notice and copies required in this paragraph and 
meaningful opportunity for the Party to participate in the investigation, defense and 
settlement of the Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions 
precedent to that Party's liability with respect to the Third Party Claim.

7. With respect to a Third Party Claim for which State is jointly liable with Agency (or 
would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), State shall contribute to the amount of 
expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in 
settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Agency in such 
proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of State on the one hand and 
of Agency on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant 
equitable considerations. The relative fault of State on the one hand and of Agency 
on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, the 

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 8



27928
 

- 5 -

Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct 
or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or 
settlement amounts. State’s contribution amount in any instance is capped to the 
same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law, including the Oregon 
Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if State had sole liability in the proceeding.

8. With respect to a Third Party Claim for which Agency is jointly liable with State (or 
would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), Agency shall contribute to the amount of 
expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in 
settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by State in such 
proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of Agency on the one hand 
and of State on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant 
equitable considerations. The relative fault of Agency on the one hand and of State 
on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, the 
Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct 
or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or 
settlement amounts. Agency's contribution amount in any instance is capped to the 
same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law, including the Oregon 
Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if it had sole liability in the proceeding.

9. The Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute arising out of this 
Agreement. In addition, the Parties may agree to utilize a jointly selected mediator or 
arbitrator (for non-binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short of litigation.

10. If federal funds are involved in this Agreement, Exhibits B and C are attached hereto 
and by this reference made a part of this Agreement, and are hereby certified to by 
Agency.

11. If federal funds are involved in this Agreement, Agency, as a recipient of federal 
funds, pursuant to this Agreement with the State, shall assume sole liability for 
Agency’s breach of any federal statutes, rules, program requirements and grant 
provisions applicable to the federal funds, and shall, upon Agency’s breach of any 
such conditions that requires the State to return funds to the Federal Highway 
Administration, hold harmless and indemnify the State for an amount equal to the 
funds received under this Agreement; or if legal limitations apply to the 
indemnification ability of Agency, the indemnification amount shall be the maximum 
amount of funds available for expenditure, including any available contingency funds 
or other available non-appropriated funds, up to the amount received under this 
Agreement.

12. The Parties hereto agree that if any term or provision of this Agreement is declared 
by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable, illegal or in conflict 
with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, 
and the rights and obligations of the Parties shall be construed and enforced as if 
the Agreement did not contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid. 

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 9



27928
 

- 6 -

13. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts (facsimile or otherwise) all 
of which when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all Parties, 
notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Each 
copy of this Agreement so executed shall constitute an original. 

14. This Agreement and attached exhibits constitute the entire agreement between the 
Parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no understandings, agreements, or 
representations, oral or written, not specified herein regarding this Agreement. No 
waiver, consent, modification or change of terms of this Agreement shall bind either 
Party unless in writing and signed by both Parties and all necessary approvals have 
been obtained. Such waiver, consent, modification or change, if made, shall be 
effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose given. The failure 
of State to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by 
State of that or any other provision. 

THE PARTIES, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that their signing 
representatives have read this Agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its 
terms and conditions. 

Signature Page to Follow 

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 10



27928
 

- 7 -

CITY OF NEWBERG, by and through 
its elected officials 

By _____________________________ 
Mayor

Date ___________________________ 

By _____________________________ 
City Manager 

Date ___________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL 
SUFFICIENCY

By _____________________________ 
City Legal Counsel 

Date ___________________________ 

Agency Contact:
Paul Chiu 
Senior Engineer 
PO Box 970 
Newberg, Oregon 97132 
(503) 554-1751 
paul.chiu@newbergoregon.gov

State Contact:
Melissa J. Mallott, SR/WA 
455 Airport Road SE, Building A 
Salem, Oregon 97301-5397 
(503) 986-2772 
melissa.j.mallott@odot.state.or.us

STATE OF OREGON, by and through 
its Department of Transportation 

By ____________________________ 
State Right of Way Manager 

Date _________________________ 

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED 

By ____________________________ 
Region 2 Right of Way Manager 

Date __________________________ 

By ____________________________ 
Region 2 Tech Center Manager 

Date___________________________

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 

By n/a
Assistant Attorney General

Date__________________________

APPROVED
(If Litigation Work Related to Condemnation 
is to be done by State) 

By n/a
Chief Trial Counsel 

Date__________________________

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 11



27928
 

- 8 -

SPECIAL PROVISIONS EXHIBIT A 
Right of Way Services 

THINGS TO BE DONE BY STATE OR AGENCY 

1. Pursuant to this Agreement, the work performed on behalf of the Agency can be 
performed by the Agency, the Agency’s consultant, or a State Flex Services consultant. 
The work may be performed by Agency staff or any of these representatives on behalf 
of Agency individually or collectively provided they are qualified to perform such 
functions and after receipt of approval from the State’s Region 2 Right of Way 
Manager. Said approval must be obtained, in writing, prior to the performance of said 
activities.

2. With the exception of work related to appraisals, State shall not enter into any 
subcontracts for any of the work scheduled under this Agreement without obtaining 
prior written approval from Agency. 

3. Both Parties will strictly follow the rules, policies and procedures of the Uniform 
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended, 
ORS Chapter 35 and the “State Right of Way Manual”.

Instructions: Insert either: State, Agency, or N/A on each line. 

A. Preliminary Phase

1. Agency shall provide preliminary cost estimates. 

2. Agency shall make preliminary contacts with property owners. 

3. Agency shall gather and provide data for environmental documents. 

4. Agency shall develop access and approach road list. 

5. Agency shall help provide field location and Project data. 

B. Acquisition Phase

1. General: 

a. When doing the Acquisition work, State shall provide Agency with a status report 
of the Project quarterly.

b. Title to properties acquired shall be in the name of the State. 

c. Prior to the initiation of acquisitions, if title to the properties is to be acquired in 
the name of the Agency, the Agency shall adopt a resolution of intention and 
determination of necessity in accord with ORS 35.235 and ORS 35.610, 
authorizing acquisition and condemnation. If the Oregon Department of Justice 

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 12



27928
 

- 9 -

is to handle condemnation work, prior approval evidenced by Chief Trial 
Counsel, Department of Justice, signature on this Agreement is required; and 
authorization for such representation shall be included in the resolution adopted 
by the Agency. Prior approval by Oregon Department of Justice is required.

2. Legal Descriptions:  

a. Agency shall provide sufficient horizontal control, recovery and retracement 
surveys, vesting deeds, maps and other data so that legal descriptions can be 
written.

b. Agency shall provide construction plans and cross-section information for the 
Project.

c. Agency shall write legal descriptions and prepare right of way maps. If the 
Agency acquires any right of way on a State highway, the property descriptions 
and right of way maps shall be based upon centerline stationing and shall be 
prepared in accordance with the current “State Right of Way & Rail/Utility 
Coordination Manual”, “Contractor Services Guide” and the “Right of Way 
Engineering Manual”. The preliminary and final versions of the property 
descriptions and right of way maps must be reviewed and approved by the 
State.

d. State shall specify the degree of title to be acquired (e.g., fee, easement). 

3. Real Property and Title Insurance: 

a. State shall provide preliminary title reports, if State determines they are needed,
before negotiations for acquisition commence.

b. State shall determine sufficiency of title (taking subject to). If the Agency 
acquires any right of way on a State highway, sufficiency of title (taking subject 
to) shall be determined in accordance with the current “State Right of Way 
Manual” and the “Contractor Services Guide”. Agency shall clear any 
encumbrances necessary to conform to these requirements, obtain Title 
Insurance policies as required and provide the State copies of any title policies 
for the properties acquired. 

c. Agency shall conduct a Level 1 Hazardous  Materials  Study within project 
limits to detect presence of hazardous materials on any property purchase, 
excavation or disturbance of structures, as early in the project design as 
possible, but at a minimum prior to property acquisition or approved design.  

d. Agency shall conduct a Level 2 Site Investigation of sufficient scope to 
confirm the presence of contamination, determine impacts to properties and 
develop special provisions and cost estimates, if the Level 1 Corridor study 

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 13



27928
 

- 10 -

indicates the potential presence of contamination that could impact the 
properties.

� If contamination is found, a recommendation for remediation will be 
presented to State. 

e. Agency shall be responsible for arrangement of any necessary remediation.

f. Agency shall conduct asbestos, lead paint and other hazardous materials 
surveys for all structures that will be demolished, renovated or otherwise 
disturbed. Asbestos surveys must be conducted by an AHERA (asbestos 
hazard emergency response act) certified inspector.

4. Appraisal: 

a. State shall conduct the valuation process of properties to be acquired.

b. State shall perform the Appraisal Reviews.  

c. State shall recommend Just Compensation, based upon a review of the 
valuation by qualified personnel. 

5. Negotiations: 

a. State shall tender all monetary offers to land-owners in writing at the 
compensation shown in the appraisal review. Conveyances taken for more or 
less than the approved Just Compensation will require a statement justifying the 
settlement. Said statement will include the consideration of any property trades, 
construction obligations and zoning or permit concessions. If State performs this 
function, it will provide the Agency with all pertinent letters, negotiation records 
and obligations incurred during the acquisition process. 

b. State and Agency shall determine a date for certification of right of way and 
agree to cosign the State’s Right of Way Certification form. State and Agency 
agree possession of all right of way shall occur prior to advertising of any 
construction contract, unless appropriate exceptions have been agreed to by 
Agency and State. 

c. State agrees to file all Recommendations for Condemnation at least seventy 
(70) days prior to the right of way certification date if negotiations have not been 
successful on those properties.

6. Relocation: 

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 14



27928
 

- 11 -

a. State shall perform any relocation assistance, make replacement housing 
computations, and do all things necessary to relocate any displaced parties on 
the Project. 

b. State shall make all relocation and moving payments for the Project. 

c. State shall perform the relocation appeal process. 

C. Closing Phase 

1. State shall close all transactions. This includes drawing of deeds, releases and 
satisfactions necessary to clear title, obtaining signatures on release documents, 
and making all payments. If Agency is handling the closing, State shall submit all 
signed Final Report packets, information required by the Uniform Act, and 
agreements to the Agency. 

2. State shall record conveyance documents, only upon acceptance by appropriate 
agency.

D. Property Management 

1. State shall take possession of all the acquired properties. There shall be no 
encroachments of buildings or other private improvements allowed upon the State 
highway right of way. 

2. State shall dispose of all improvements and excess land. 

E. Condemnation 

1. State may offer mediation if the parties have reached an impasse. 

2. State shall perform all administrative functions in preparation of the condemnation 
process, such as preparing final offer and complaint letters. 

3. State shall perform all legal and litigation work related to the condemnation process. 
(If State agrees to handle legal and litigation work, prior approval evidenced by 
Chief Trial Counsel, Department of Justice, signature on this Agreement is required. 
Where it is contemplated that property will be obtained for Agency for the Project, 
such approval will be conditioned on passage of a resolution by Agency 
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D, and by this reference made a 
part hereof, specifically identifying the property being acquired.) 

4. Where State shall perform legal or litigation work related to the condemnation 
process, Agency acknowledges, and agrees and undertakes to assure that no 
member of Agency's board or council, nor Agency's mayor, when such member or 
mayor is a practicing attorney, nor Agency's attorney nor any member of the law 
firm of Agency's attorney, board or council member, or mayor, will represent any 
party, except Agency, against the State of Oregon, its employees or contractors, in 

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 15



27928
 

- 12 -

any matter arising from or related to the Project which is the subject of this 
Agreement.

F. Transfer of Right of Way to State 

If applicable, Agency agrees to transfer to the State all right of way acquired on the 
State highway which was acquired in the Agency’s name. The specific method of 
conveyance will be determined by the Agency and the State at the time of transfer and 
shall be coordinated by the State’s Region Right of Way Manager. Agency agrees to 
provide the State all information and file documentation the State deems necessary to 
integrate the right of way into the State’s highway system. At a minimum, this includes: 
copies of all recorded conveyance documents used to vest title in the name of the 
Agency during the right of way acquisition process, and the Agency’s Final Report or 
Summary Report for each acquisition file that reflects the terms of the acquisition and 
all agreements with the property owner(s). 

 G. Transfer of Right of Way to Agency 

If applicable, State agrees to transfer and Agency agrees to accept all right of way 
acquired on the Agency’s facility which was acquired in the State’s name.  The 
specific method of conveyance will be determined by the State and the Agency at 
the time of transfer and shall be coordinated by the State’s Region Right of Way 
Manager.  If requested, State agrees to provide Agency information and file 
documentation associated with the transfer. 

 

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 16



27928
 

- 13 -

For purposes of Exhibits B and C, references to Department shall mean State, references to Contractor 
shall mean Agency, and references to Contract shall mean Agreement.

EXHIBIT B (Local Agency or State Agency) 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION 

Contractor certifies by signing this Contract that Contractor has not: 

 (a) Employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, contingency fee or other 
consideration, any firm or person (other than a bona fide employee working solely for me or the 
above Contractor) to solicit or secure this Contract, 

 (b) agreed, as an express or implied condition for obtaining this Contract, to employ or retain the 
services of any firm or person in connection with carrying out the Contract, or 

 (c) paid or agreed to pay, to any firm, organization or person (other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for me or the above Contractor), any fee, contribution, donation or consideration 
of any kind for or in connection with, procuring or carrying out the Contract, except as here 
expressly stated (if any): 

Contractor further acknowledges that this certificate is to be furnished to the Federal Highway 
Administration, and is subject to applicable State and Federal laws, both criminal and civil. 

DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL CERTIFICATION 

Department official likewise certifies by signing this Contract that Contractor or his/her representative has 
not been required directly or indirectly as an expression of implied condition in connection with obtaining 
or carrying out this Contract to: 

 (a) Employ, retain or agree to employ or retain, any firm or person or 

 (b) pay or agree to pay, to any firm, person or organization, any fee, contribution, donation or 
consideration of any kind except as here expressly stated (if any): 

Department official further acknowledges this certificate is to be furnished to the Federal Highway 
Administration, and is subject to applicable State and Federal laws, both criminal and civil. 

Exhibit C 
Federal Provisions 

Oregon Department of Transportation 

 CERTIFICATION OF NONINVOLVEMENT IN ANY DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 

Contractor certifies by signing this Contract that to the best of its knowledge and belief, it and its 
principals:

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 17



27928
 

- 14 -

 1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, 
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible 
or voluntarily excluded from covered 
transactions by any Federal department or 
agency;

 2. Have not within a three-year period preceding 
this Contract been convicted of or had a civil 
judgment rendered against them for 
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to 
obtain or performing a public (federal, state or 
local) transaction or contract under a public 
transaction; violation of federal or state 
antitrust statutes or commission of 
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery 
falsification or destruction of records, making 
false statements or receiving stolen property; 

 3. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise 
criminally or  civilly charged by a 
governmental entity (federal, state or local) 
with commission of any of the offenses 
enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this 
certification; and 

 4. Have not within a three-year period preceding 
this Contract had one or more public 
transactions (federal, state or local) 
terminated for cause or default.

Where the Contractor is unable to certify to any of 
the statements in this certification, such prospective 
participant shall submit a written explanation to 
Department.

List exceptions. For each exception noted, indicate 
to whom the exception applies, initiating agency, 
and dates of action. If additional space is required, 
attach another page with the following heading: 
Certification Exceptions continued, Contract Insert. 

EXCEPTIONS:

Exceptions will not necessarily result in denial of 
award, but will be considered in determining 
Contractor responsibility. Providing false information 
may result in criminal prosecution or administrative 
sanctions.

The Contractor is advised that by signing this 
Contract, the Contractor is deemed to have signed 
this certification. 

II. INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 
REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, 
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS–
PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

 1. By signing this Contract, the Contractor is 
providing the certification set out below. 

 2. The inability to provide the certification 
required below will not necessarily result in 
denial of participation in this covered 
transaction. The Contractor shall explain 
why he or she cannot provide the 
certification set out below. This explanation 
will be considered in connection with the 
Department determination to enter into this 
transaction. Failure to furnish an explanation 
shall disqualify such person from 
participation in this transaction. 

 3. The certification in this clause is a material 
representation of fact upon which reliance 
was placed when the Department 
determined to enter into this transaction. If it 
is later determined that the Contractor 
knowingly rendered an erroneous 
certification, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal Government or the 
Department may terminate this transaction 
for cause of default. 

 4. The Contractor shall provide immediate 
written notice to the Department if at any 
time the Contractor learns that its 
certification was erroneous when submitted 
or has become erroneous by reason of 
changed circumstances. 

 5. The terms "covered transaction", 
"debarred", "suspended", "ineligible", "lower 
tier covered transaction", "participant", 
"person", "primary covered transaction", 
"principal", and "voluntarily excluded", as 
used in this clause, have the meanings set 
out in the Definitions and Coverage sections 
of the rules implementing Executive Order 
12549. You may contact the Department's 
Program Section (Tel. (503) 986-3400) to 
which this proposal is being submitted for 
assistance in obtaining a copy of those 
regulations.

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 18



27928
 

- 15 -

 6. The Contractor agrees by entering into this 
Contract that, should the proposed covered 
transaction be entered into, it shall not 
knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 
transactions with a person who is debarred, 
suspended, declared ineligible or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this covered 
transaction, unless authorized by the 
Department or agency entering into this 
transaction.

 7. The Contractor further agrees by entering 
into this Contract that it will include the 
Addendum to Form FHWA-1273 titled, 
"Appendix B--Certification Regarding 
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and 
Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier Covered 
Transactions", provided by the Department 
entering into this covered transaction 
without modification, in all lower tier covered 
transactions and in all solicitations for lower 
tier covered transactions. 

 8. A participant in a covered transaction may 
rely upon a certification of a prospective 
participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that it is not debarred, 
suspended, ineligible or voluntarily excluded 
from the covered transaction, unless it 
knows that the certification is erroneous. A 
participant may decide the method and 
frequency by which it determines the 
eligibility of its principals. Each participant 
may, but is not required to, check the 
Nonprocurement List published by the U. S. 
General Services Administration. 

 9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be 
construed to require establishment of a 
system of records to render in good faith the 
certification required by this clause. The 
knowledge and information of a participant 
is not required to exceed that which is 
normally possessed by a prudent person in 
the ordinary course of business dealings. 

 10. Except for transactions authorized under 
paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a 
participant in a covered transaction 
knowingly enters into a lower tier covered 
transaction with a person who is suspended, 
debarred, ineligible or voluntarily excluded 
from participation in this transaction, in 
addition to other remedies available to the 
Federal Government or the Department, the 

Department may terminate this transaction 
for cause or default. 

III. ADDENDUM TO FORM FHWA-1273, 
REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

This certification applies to subcontractors, material 
suppliers, vendors, and other lower tier participants. 

• Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 29 - 

Appendix B--Certification Regarding Debarment, 
Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary 
Exclusion--Lower Tier Covered Transactions 

Instructions for Certification 

 1. By signing and submitting this Contract, the 
prospective lower tier participant is providing 
the certification set out below. 

 2. The certification in this clause is a material 
representation of fact upon which reliance 
was placed when this transaction was 
entered into. If it is later determined that the 
prospective lower tier participant knowingly 
rendered an erroneous certification, in 
addition to other remedies available to the 
Federal Government, the department or 
agency with which this transaction 
originated may pursue available remedies, 
including suspension and/or debarment. 

 3. The prospective lower tier participant shall 
provide immediate written notice to the 
person to which this Contract is submitted if 
at any time the prospective lower tier 
participant learns that its certification was 
erroneous when submitted or has become 
erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances.

 4. The terms "covered transaction", 
"debarred", "suspended", "ineligible", "lower 
tier covered transaction", "participant", 
"person", "primary covered transaction", 
"principal", "proposal", and "voluntarily 
excluded", as used in this clause, have the 
meanings set out in the Definitions and 
Coverage sections of rules implementing 
Executive Order 12549. You may contact 
the person to which this Contract is 
submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy 
of those regulations. 

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 19



27928
 

- 16 -

 5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees 
by submitting this Contract that, should the 
proposed covered transaction be entered 
into, it shall not knowingly enter into any 
lower tier covered transaction with a person 
who is debarred, suspended, declared 
ineligible or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this covered transaction, 
unless authorized by the department or 
agency with which this transaction 
originated.

 6. The prospective lower tier participant further 
agrees by submitting this Contract that it will 
include this clause titled, "Certification 
Regarding Debarment, Suspension, 
Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion--Lower 
Tier Covered Transaction", without 
modification, in all lower tier covered 
transactions and in all solicitations for lower 
tier covered transactions. 

 7. A participant in a covered transaction may 
rely upon a certification of a prospective 
participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that it is not debarred, 
suspended, ineligible or voluntarily excluded 
from the covered transaction, unless it 
knows that the certification is erroneous. A 
participant may decide the method and 
frequency by which it determines the 
eligibility of its principals. Each participant 
may, but is not required to, check the 
nonprocurement list. 

 8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be 
construed to require establishment of a 
system of records to render in good faith the 
certification required by this clause. The 
knowledge and information of a participant 
is not required to exceed that which is 
normally possessed by a prudent person in 
the ordinary course of business dealings. 

 9. Except for transactions authorized under 
paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a 
participant in a covered transaction 
knowingly enters into a lower tier covered 
transaction with a person who is suspended, 
debarred, ineligible or voluntarily excluded  
from participation in this transaction, in 
addition to other remedies available to the 
Federal Government, the department or 
agency with which this transaction 

originated may pursue available remedies, 
including suspension and/or debarment. 

Certification Regarding Debarment, 
Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary 
Exclusion--Lower Tier Covered 
Transactions

  a. The prospective lower tier participant 
certifies, by entering into this Contract, 
that neither it nor its principals is 
presently debarred, suspended, 
proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this transaction by any 
Federal department or agency. 

  b. Where the prospective lower tier 
participant is unable to certify to any of 
the statements in this certification, such 
prospective participant shall submit a 
written explanation to Department. 

IV. EMPLOYMENT 

 1. Contractor warrants that he has not 
employed or retained any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for Contractor, to solicit or 
secure this Contract and that he has not 
paid or agreed to pay any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for Contractors, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, 
gifts or any other consideration contingent 
upon or resulting from the award or making 
of this Contract. For breach or violation of 
this warranting, Department shall have the 
right to annul this Contract without liability or 
in its discretion to deduct from the Contract 
price or consideration or otherwise recover, 
the full amount of such fee, commission, 
percentage, brokerage fee, gift or contingent 
fee.

 2. Contractor shall not engage, on a full or 
part-time basis or other basis, during the 
period of the Contract, any professional or 
technical personnel who are or have been at 
any time during the period of this Contract, 
in the employ of Department, except 
regularly retired employees, without written 
consent of the public employer of such 
person.

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 20



27928
 

- 17 -

 3. Contractor agrees to perform consulting 
services with that standard of care, skill and 
diligence normally provided by a 
professional in the performance of such 
consulting services on work similar to that 
hereunder. Department shall be entitled to 
rely on the accuracy, competence, and 
completeness of Contractor's services.

V. NONDISCRIMINATION

 During the performance of this Contract, 
Contractor, for himself, his assignees and 
successors in interest, hereinafter referred to as 
Contractor, agrees as follows: 

 1. Compliance with Regulations. Contractor 
agrees to comply with Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, and Section 162(a) of 
the Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973 and 
the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987. 
Contractor shall comply with the regulations 
of the Department of Transportation relative 
to nondiscrimination in Federally assisted 
programs of the Department of 
Transportation, Title 49, Code of Federal 
Regulations, Part 21, as they may be 
amended from time to time (hereinafter 
referred to as the Regulations), which are 
incorporated by reference and made a part 
of this Contract. Contractor, with regard to 
the work performed after award and prior to 
completion of the Contract work, shall not 
discriminate on grounds of race, creed, 
color, sex or national origin in the selection 
and retention of subcontractors, including 
procurement of materials and leases of 
equipment. Contractor shall not participate 
either directly or indirectly in the 
discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of 
the Regulations, including employment 
practices, when the Contract covers a 
program set forth in Appendix B of the 
Regulations.

 2. Solicitation for Subcontractors, including 
Procurement of Materials and Equipment. In 
all solicitations, either by competitive bidding 
or negotiations made by Contractor for work 
to be performed under a subcontract, 
including procurement of materials and 
equipment, each potential subcontractor or 
supplier shall be notified by Contractor of 
Contractor's obligations under this Contract 
and regulations relative to nondiscrimination 

on the grounds of race, creed, color, sex or 
national origin. 

 3. Nondiscrimination in Employment (Title VII 
of the 1964 Civil Rights Act). During the 
performance of this Contract, Contractor 
agrees as follows: 

  a. Contractor will not discriminate against 
any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, creed, 
color, sex or national origin. Contractor 
will take affirmative action to ensure that 
applicants are employed, and that 
employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their 
race, creed, color, sex or national origin. 
Such action shall include, but not be 
limited to the following: employment, 
upgrading, demotion or transfer; 
recruitment or recruitment advertising; 
layoff or termination; rates of pay or 
other forms of compensation; and 
selection for training, including 
apprenticeship. Contractor agrees to 
post in conspicuous places, available to 
employees and applicants for 
employment, notice setting forth the 
provisions of this nondiscrimination 
clause.

  b. Contractor will, in all solicitations or 
advertisements for employees placed by 
or on behalf of Contractor, state that all 
qualified applicants will receive 
consideration for employment without 
regard to race, creed, color, sex or 
national origin. 

 4. Information and Reports. Contractor will 
provide all information and reports required 
by the Regulations or orders and 
instructions issued pursuant thereto, and will 
permit access to his books, records, 
accounts, other sources of information, and 
his facilities as may be determined by 
Department or FHWA as appropriate, and 
shall set forth what efforts he has made to 
obtain the information. 

 5. Sanctions for Noncompliance. In the event 
of Contractor's noncompliance with the 
nondiscrimination provisions of the Contract, 
Department shall impose such agreement 
sanctions as it or the FHWA may determine 

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 21



27928
 

- 18 -

to be appropriate, including, but not limited 
to:

  a. Withholding of payments to Contractor 
under the agreement until Contractor 
complies; and/or 

  b. Cancellation, termination or suspension 
of the agreement in whole or in part. 

6. Incorporation of Provisions. Contractor will 
include the provisions of paragraphs 1 
through 6 of this section in every 
subcontract, including procurement of 
materials and leases of equipment, unless 
exempt from Regulations, orders or 
instructions issued pursuant thereto. 
Contractor shall take such action with 
respect to any subcontractor or procurement 
as Department or FHWA may direct as a 
means of enforcing such provisions, 
including sanctions for noncompliance; 
provided, however, that in the event 
Contractor becomes involved in or is 
threatened with litigation with a 
subcontractor or supplier as a result of such 
direction, Department may, at its option, 
enter into such litigation to protect the 
interests of Department, and, in addition, 
Contractor may request Department to enter 
into such litigation to protect the interests of 
the State of Oregon. 

VI. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS  
 ENTERPRISE (DBE) POLICY 

 In accordance with Title 49, Code of Federal 
Regulations, Part 26, Contractor shall agree to 
abide by and take all necessary and 
reasonable steps to comply with the following 
statement:

DBE POLICY STATEMENT 

 DBE Policy.  It is the policy of the United 
States Department of Transportation (USDOT) 
to practice nondiscrimination on the basis of 
race, color, sex and/or national origin in the 
award and administration of USDOT assist 
contracts. Consequently, the DBE requirements 
of 49 CFR 26 apply to this Contract. 

 Required Statement For USDOT Financial 
Assistance Agreement. If as a condition of 
assistance the Agency has submitted and the 

US Department of Transportation has approved 
a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
Affirmative Action Program which the Agency 
agrees to carry out, this affirmative action 
program is incorporated into the financial 
assistance agreement by reference.

 DBE Obligations.  The Department and its 
Contractor agree to ensure that Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprises as defined in 49 CFR 26 
have the opportunity to participate in the 
performance of contracts and subcontracts 
financed in whole or in part with Federal funds.  
In this regard, Contractor shall take all 
necessary and reasonable steps in accordance 
with 49 CFR 26 to ensure that Disadvantaged  
Business Enterprises have the opportunity to 
compete for and perform contracts. Neither 
Department nor its contractors shall 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national 
origin or sex in the award and performance of 
federally-assisted contracts. The Contractor 
shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 
CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of 
such contracts. Failure by the Contractor to 
carry out these requirements is a material 
breach of this Contract, which may result in the 
termination of this Contract or such other 
remedy as Department deems appropriate. 

 The DBE Policy Statement and Obligations 
shall be included in all subcontracts entered 
into under this Contract. 

 Records and Reports. Contractor shall 
provide monthly documentation to Department 
that it is subcontracting with or purchasing 
materials from the DBEs identified to meet 
Contract goals. Contractor shall notify 
Department and obtain its written approval 
before replacing a DBE or making any change 
in the DBE participation listed. If a DBE is 
unable to fulfill the original obligation to the 
Contract, Contractor must demonstrate to 
Department the Affirmative Action steps taken 
to replace the DBE with another DBE. Failure 
to do so will result in withholding payment on 
those items. The monthly documentation will 
not be required after the DBE goal commitment 
is satisfactory to Department. 

 Any DBE participation attained after the DBE 
goal has been satisfied should be reported to 
the Departments. 

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 22



27928
 

- 19 -

 DBE Definition. Only firms DBE 
certified by the State of Oregon, Department 
of Consumer & Business Services, Office of 
Minority, Women & Emerging Small Business, 
may be utilized to satisfy this obligation.

CONTRACTOR'S DBE CONTRACT GOAL 

DBE GOAL     0  % 

 By signing this Contract, Contractor assures 
that good faith efforts have been made to meet 
the goal for the DBE participation specified in 
the Contract for this project as required by ORS 
200.045, and 49 CFR 26.53 and 49 CFR, Part 
26, Appendix A. 

VII. LOBBYING

 The Contractor certifies, by signing this 
agreement to the best of his or her knowledge 
and belief, that: 

 1. No Federal appropriated funds have been 
paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
undersigned, to any person for influencing 
or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any Federal agency, a Member 
of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with the awarding of 
any Federal contract, the making of any 
Federal grant, the making of any Federal 
loan, the entering into of any cooperative 
agreement, and the extension, continuation, 
renewal, amendment or modification of any 
Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative 
agreement.

 2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated 
funds have been paid or will be paid to any 
person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any 
Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an 
officer or employee of Congress or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this agreement, the 
undersigned shall complete and submit 
Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to 
Report Lobbying", in accordance with its 
instructions. 

 This certification is a material representation of 
fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. 

Submission of this certification is a prerequisite 
for making or entering into this transaction 
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U. S. Code. 
Any person who fails to file the required 
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of 
not less than $10,000 and not more than 
$100,000 for each such failure. 

 The Contractor also agrees by signing this 
agreement that he or she shall require that the 
language of this certification be included in all 
lower tier subagreements, which exceed 
$100,000 and that all such subrecipients shall 
certify and disclose accordingly.

FOR INQUIRY CONCERNING 
DEPARTMENT’S DBE PROGRAM 
REQUIREMENT CONTACT OFFICE OF 
CIVIL RIGHTS AT (503)986-4354.

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 23



27928
 

- 20 -

RESOLUTION EXERCISING THE POWER OF EMINENT DOMAIN EXHIBIT D
Right of Way Services 

(Instructions, please delete before completing form)Regions:  This portion of the document is 
unlocked.  The LPA should block and copy to incorporate this language into their own standard 
resolution form OR fill in an “attested to” line or signature line at the bottom and use this form.

WHEREAS (insert title of agency) may exercise the power of eminent domain pursuant to (Agency's 
charter)  (statutes conferring authority) and the Law of the State of Oregon generally, when the 
exercise of such power is deemed necessary by the  (insert title of agency)’s governing body to 
accomplish public purposes for which (insert title of agency) has responsibility; 

WHEREAS (insert title of agency) has the responsibility of providing safe transportation routes for 
commerce, convenience and to adequately serve the traveling public;

WHEREAS the project or projects known as (insert Project name) have been planned in accordance 
with appropriate engineering standards for the construction, maintenance or improvement of said 
transportation infrastructure such that property damage is minimized, transportation promoted, travel 
safeguarded; and

WHEREAS to accomplish the project or projects set forth above it is necessary to acquire the 
interests in the property described in “Exhibit A,” attached to this resolution and, by this reference 
incorporated herein; now, therefore 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by (Agency's Council, Commission, or Board)

1. The foregoing statements of authority and need are, in fact, the case.  The project or 
projects for which the property is required and is being acquired are necessary in the 
public interest, and the same have been planned, designed, located, and will be 
constructed in a manner which will be most compatible with the greatest public good and 
the least private injury; 

2. The power of eminent domain is hereby exercised with respect to each of the interests in 
property described in Exhibit A.  Each is acquired subject to payment of just compensation 
and subject to procedural requirements of Oregon law; 

3. The (insert title of agency)’s staff and the (Agency's Attorney, Counsel, or District's 
Counsel (or) (The Oregon Department of Transportation and the Attorney General) are 
authorized and requested to attempt to agree with the owner and other persons in interest 
as to the compensation to be paid for each acquisition, and, in the event that no 
satisfactory agreement can be reached, to commence and prosecute such condemnation 
proceedings as may be necessary to finally determine just compensation or any other 
issue appropriate to be determined by a court in connection with the acquisition.  This 
authorization is not intended to expand the jurisdiction of any court to decide matters 
determined above or determinable by the (Agency's Council, Commission, or Board). 

4. (insert title of agency) expressly reserves its jurisdiction to determine the necessity or 
propriety of any acquisition, its quantity, quality, or locality, and to change or abandon any 
acquisition.

DATED this _____ day of ________________, 20__

EXHIBIT A 
for Resolution No. 2012-2991

Page 24



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2992 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 5, 2012 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2012-2992 

SUBJECT:  Authorize the city manager to negotiate 
contract change orders with First Cascade 
Corporation for the Fire Station 20 Remodel Project 
up to a total contract amount of $705,366.00. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Jason Wuertz, Project Manager 
Dept.: Public Works Department - Engineering 
File No.:  

 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2012-2992, authorizing the city manager to negotiate a 
contract change order with First Cascade Corporation for the construction of the Fire Station 20 Remodel 
Project up to a total contract amount of $705,366.00. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   This resolution will repeal Resolution No. 2012-2985 which authorized the 
City Manager to negotiate a contract change order with First Cascade Corporation for added scope to the 
construction of the Fire Station 20 Remodel Project up to the full value of grant funding.  The grant funding 
was previously reported to be awarded in the amount of $764,225.00.  The correct grant value is 
$809,225.00. 
 
An American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Assistance to Firefighters Fire Station Construction 
Grant was  awarded to the Newberg Fire Department in the amount of $809,225.00.  The Volunteer’s 
Firefighters Association has committed to funding the construction of the designed bell tower, which will 
cost $17,570.00, increasing the total project budget to $826,795.00. 
 
On September 6, 2011, the City Council adopted a resolution authorizing the city manager to enter into a 
contract for $592,028.00 with First Cascade Corporation for the construction of the Fire Station 20 Remodel 
Project.  Several change orders have been required in order to complete this original scope of work.  The 
current contract value with First Cascade, with approved change orders, is at $635,366.00. 
 
The other elements of the project include design, permit fees, special inspections, relocation of a natural gas 
line, purchase of various appliances, and built-in bunk room casework.  While some of these costs are 
considered owner costs, all of them are fully funded through the grant.  
 
The remainder of the grant will be used to add value to the project.  This will be accomplished by 
negotiating change orders to add selected items in a priority order without exceeding the approved grant 
amount.  
 
City Code allows for contract change orders to be authorized by the city manager until the total cost exceeds 
10% above the original contract amount.  At that point City Council authorization is required for additional 
work.  This authorization is required in order to complete additional change orders. This resolution will 
authorize staff to negotiate contract change orders up to a total contract amount of $705,366.00.  The project 
budget spreadsheet can be seen as “Exhibit A.” 
 

Page 25



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2992 PAGE 2 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The total project costs will not exceed the approved grant funding.  FY 11/12 budget, 
under account number 1-2220-610534, supports this contract amount while receiving reimbursements from 
the approved ARRA grant.    
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: This project addresses firefighter health and safety as well as allows 
additional space for increased staffing which will improve the firefighter’s ability to serve the citizens.
 
 
 

Page 26



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2992 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE 
CONTRACT CHANGE ORDERS WITH FIRST CASCADE CORPORATION 
FOR TO THE FIRE STATION 20 REMODEL PROJECT UP TO A TOTAL 
CONTRACT AMOUNT OF $705,366.00 AND REPEAL RESOLUTION NO. 
2012-2985 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. Repeal Resolution No. 2012-2985 which stated an incorrect grant funding amount. 
 
2. The City has received a grant totaling $809,225.00 from the American Recovery and Reinvestment 

Act (ARRA) Assistance to Firefighters Fire Station Construction.  The Volunteer’s Firefighter’s 
Association has agreed to contribute $17,570.00 to the project increasing the total project budget to 
$826,795.00. 

 
3. On September 6, 2011, the City Council adopted a resolution authorizing the city manager to enter 

into a contract for $592,028.00 with First Cascade Corporation for the construction of the Fire 
Station 20 Remodel Project.  

 
4. Several change orders have been authorized by the City Manager bringing the current contract 

amount to $635,366.00.  In addition, the grant funding also pays for those items considered to be 
“owner costs”. 

 
5. The amount of money left in the grant that can be allocated to the contract is estimated at $70,000.00 

as shown in “Exhibit A” and by this reference incorporated.  The City and contractor have created a 
list of contract changes that will utilize the remaining grant money to add value to the project.  

 
6. The City will negotiate with the contractor to include as many of these items as possible without 

exceeding the grant funding. 
 
7. This project is included in the FY 2011-2012 budget with reimbursement for all expenses coming 

from the ARRA grant and the Volunteer’s Firefighter’s Association. 
 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2992 PAGE 3 

Page 27



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2992 PAGE 4 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The City Council, acting as Contract Review Board for the City, does hereby authorize the city 
manager to negotiate contract change orders with First Cascade Corporation to the Fire Station 20 
Remodel Project up to a total contract amount of $705,366.00, and is further shown in the attached 
Exhibit “A,” which is hereby adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: March 5, 2012. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 6th day of March, 2012. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 8 day of March, 2012. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 
 
 
 

 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
By and through                                  Committee at       /      /          meeting.  Or,        None. 
     (committee name)    (date)      (check if applicable) 

  
 

Page 28



EXHIBIT “A” 
To Resolution No.2012-2992 

 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2992 PAGE 5 

 
Project Cost Summary 

General Contractor Construction Cost   $592,028.00 
   
Change Orders To Date    $43,338.00 
     
    
   

Contract Subtotal   $635,366.00 
     
Consultant Costs     
A/E Design and Construction Administration  $77,986.00 
     

Subtotal  $77,986.00 
     
Special Inspections  $2,356.00 
     

Subtotal Consultants  $80,342.00 
Consultants Contingency  0.75% 

Subtotal  $602.57 
Subtotal Consultants   $80,944.57 

     
Owner Cost     
NW Natural Gas Relocation  $7,869.00 
Kitchen Appliances  $8,000.00 
Built In Bunk Room Casework   $7,600.00 
     

Subtotal  $23,469.00 
     
Permit Fees (Allowance)  $14,000.00 
BOLI Fees  $700.00 

Subtotal  $14,700.00 
     

  
   

  
Subtotal Owner Costs   $38,169.00 

     
Project Total   $754,479.57 

Project Budget: ($809,225+17,570)= $826,795       Remaining: $72,315.44  
   

  
 

Page 29



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 30



City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 5, 2012 
Order        Ordinance          Resolution              Motion  XX         Information ___ 
No.                   No.                        No. 
SUBJECT:    Approve the February 6, 2012, City 
Council Meeting minutes. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:  Norma Alley, City Recorder 
Dept.:  Administration  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
Approve City Council minutes for preservation and permanent retention in the City’s historical records. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The City of Newberg City Council held a public meeting and minutes were recorded in text.  In accordance 
to Oregon State Records Management law, the City of Newberg must preserve these minutes in hard copy 
form for permanent retention. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  
 
None. 

Page 31



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (February 6, 2012) Page 1 of 6 

CITY OF NEWBERG COUNCIL MINUTES 
FEBRUARY 6, 2012 

7:00 P.M. MEETING 
PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 

 
A work session was held prior to the meeting.  A presentation was given from the city engineer on capital 
improvement projects.  All Councilors and the Mayor were present; no action was taken and no decisions were 
made. 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Bob Andrews called the meeting to order at 7:03 PM.   
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
Members 
Present: Mayor Bob Andrews  Denise Bacon   Ryan Howard  Stephen McKinney 
 Bart Rierson    Marc Shelton   Wade Witherspoon 
Staff 
Present: Daniel Danicic, City Manager  Terry Mahr, City Attorney 
 Barton Brierley, Planning and Building Director Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 
  Jennifer Nelson, Minutes Recorder 
Others 
Present: Mike Ragsdale, Randy Morgan DMD, Robert Nathaniel Travers, and Robert Soppe 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Boy Scout Troop 265 performed the Color Guard.  The Pledge of Allegiance was performed.   
 
IV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Daniel Danicic, City Manager, reported the Citizens’ Rate Review Committee (CRRC) Town Hall will be 
held this Wednesday in the Public Safety Building (PSB); the following Wednesday will be the final public 
hearing and decision on the recommendation to make to Council for consideration in March.  Congresswoman 
Suzanne Bonamici will be holding a town hall meeting on February 22, 2012, with an invitation to the 
surrounding communities to attend.  The Local Governments Dinner hosted by the City of Amity will be held 
on February 16, 2012.  The sidewalks along N. College Street on the east side of the railroad are now finished 
so pedestrians can cross the tracks safely.  A small water district served by the City Foothills Drive is down to 
four properties at this time and one of the four residents leading the district has moved to an assisted care 
facility; they anticipate the residents will come to Council to ask for support to take over the water district. 
 
Councilor Ryan Howard asked about the origin of the funding for the N. College Street improvements currently 
being constructed.  Mr. Danicic replied part was from the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) when 
they made improvements to their storage yard on the north side of the tracks and some was from grant monies; 
the work on the sidewalks was at the City’s expense.  
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Mike Ragsdale, Newberg Downtown Coalition (NDC), with assistance from Mr. Randy Morgan submitted 
handouts and spoke to the Council on a request to rebuild the 2nd Street parking lot.  Mr. Morgan is the 
chairperson on the committee created to address the “Merchant Lot”.  They discussed the history of the parking 

Page 32



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (February 6, 2012) Page 2 of 6 

lot, which is owned by the City and in need of repair and improvements for visual aesthetics to encourage the 
downtown businesses to enhance their retail façades.  They presented designs for resurfacing, painting, and 
landscaping and asked for Council’s support for the design concept by directing staff to proceed with steps to 
develop the project and possible funding (see official meeting record for full report).  
 
Councilor Marc Shelton asked how the improvements compare to the amount being done at the Chehalem 
Cultural Center.  Mr. Ragsdale replied it is roughly the same size and the costs including landscaping is about 
$12.00 per square foot or approximately $240,000.00.   
 
Councilor Howard asked him to elaborate on the request for staff work.  Mr. Ragsdale replied they brought it to 
Council and the City looking for guidance to move into the details of funding, lane flow, and parking 
considerations. 
 
Councilor Shelton mentioned the design code and possibilities to do asphalt with swales for runoff to go into 
ground naturally.  Mr. Barton Brierley, Planning and Building Director, replied this is an option. 
 
Councilor Wade Witherspoon asked if the NDC and downtown businesses were in full support of the proposal.  
Mr. Ragsdale said the NDC Board approved it unanimously and Mr. Morgan has talked with the merchants; 
their concerns were with how many parking spots would be lost and where the funding would come from. 
 
Mr. Nate Travers, Rendered Clothing, stated his full support and in speaking with others downtown, especially 
those right on First Street, they agree the entrance from the back would be nicer. 
 
Mayor Andrews suggested discussing the topic further under the Council Business portion of the agenda. 
 
Mr. Robert Soppe addressed issues he raised previously at the October 13, 2011, Council meeting regarding 
George Fox University (GFU) placing tickets on vehicles.  He said he had conversations with GFU’s Director 
of Security about their ability to confirm ownership of the vehicles before giving tickets and they choose not to 
do this because of time and expenses.  He stated he had a meeting with Police Chief Brian Casey about how to 
better handle the situation.  Second, he discussed funding mechanisms for matching funds for installing the 
sidewalks on N. College Street with grant monies; he said he was not sure if the grant was received because he 
got no response to this issue and he did not feel Council is meeting expectations when a request is referred to 
staff for follow-up.  Lastly, he spoke of last week’s meeting about the Cultural District and his displeasure with 
how the Chehalem Park and Recreation District (CPRD) handles residents concerns with parking.  After 
attending the last four meetings he does not feel the parking concerns are being addressed and the new 
consultants were not even aware of the issues and did not even bring them up until neighbors did about forty-
five minutes into the meeting and the consultant acted annoyed; he wanted Council to make a conscious 
decision and wished to see things handled appropriately. 
 
Mayor Andrews asked about the research regarding the non-remonstrances.  Mr. Danicic replied he has the 
report on his desk to review and will schedule it to be brought to Council. 
 
Councilor Shelton mentioned he exchanged some opinions about handbills and asked if Mr. Soppe was looking 
for opinions or thinking more for enforcement of the ordinance.  Mr. Soppe said he asked for a conversation 
about it, but Council never addressed if they thought GFU was in violation or not.  Councilor Shelton said 
allowing handbills to be distributed is in violation of the ordinance. 
 
Councilor Howard discussed the first concern about the college security’s authority to ticket students’ cars and 
not others; he said the violations of the ordinance needs to be addressed.  Mr. Soppe said he presumes they are 
placing the tickets on cars based on appearance, but he was just frustrated it was not addressed, especially when 
they are threatening to tow vehicles.   
 

Page 33



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (February 6, 2012) Page 3 of 6 

Councilor Howard addressed the second concern about the Local Improvement District (LID) on N. College 
Street and asked staff if the grant money has been received yet.  Mr. Danicic replied they have the grant and the 
consultant is on board and looking at the planned improvements; he added there is still time to bring this before 
Council.  Mr. Soppe commented the decision would be taken out of the Council’s hands if they keep pushing it 
off. 
 
Councilor Howard addressed the third concern stating he was at the meeting for the Cultural District parking 
issues and disagreed the consultant did not address or discuss the concerns; he said just because everyone is not 
in favor does not mean it was not addressed.  Mr. Soppe stated the parking is integrated into the plan and it is 
not clear when a decision should take place regarding the issues; he felt active decisions about what to do 
regarding the parking need to be made and the consultant stated they were not aware of the issues. 
 
Councilor Shelton said he was comfortable there was still enough time to make a decision regarding the LID on 
College Street; he questioned staff if a condition of the grant excluded the use of an LID.  Mr. Danicic replied it 
may not exclude an LID, but the City is matching costs and the consideration was to recoup costs through non-
remonstrances.  Councilor Shelton stated he did not believe an LID is an appropriate use for this because it is an 
issue of pedestrian and bicycle access on N. College Street and he felt it is something the City needs to provide.  
Mr. Soppe remarked it is not being done in a timely manner and added the City is not providing the funds for 
the improvements, but the developers are through System Development Charges (SDCs). 
 
Councilor Bart Rierson spoke on the parking at the Cultural Center stating according to the CPRD Board 
meeting and he was under the impression the permits have not yet been issued because they did not yet set aside 
the $50,000.00 for future underground utilities improvements.  Mr. Danicic stated he met with Mr. Ragsdale 
and Mr. Don Clements, CPRD superintendent, and discussed a letter providing tentative approval with a 
resolution including their obligation to pay for improvements in the future. 
 
Councilor Stephen McKinney addressed the parking issue with GFU and their right to enforce their rules and 
relationship with their students.  He felt there have been fewer problems last year than in previous years and that 
it may be a matter of redefining what handbills are to correctly reflect the need to cite students for enforcement 
and delineate them from residents in an identifiable way.  He said if the present ordinance is inadequate, then 
they need to correct it; but, they also need to allow for the college to have a way to enforce their rules as well.  
Mr. Soppe added the college can check out if the cars belong to residents or students and take a less expensive 
route. 
 
VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

 Consider a motion approving the January 3, 2012, City Council meetings. 
 
MOTION: Rierson/Shelton approving the City Council minutes from January 3, 2012, as amended.  
Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 
 
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

Consider a motion approving Ordinance No. 2012-2748 repealing an Annexation and 
Development Agreement for the McClure Property at 30295 Highway 99W. 

TIME – 7:45 PM 
 
Mayor Andrews called for any conflicts of interest or abstentions; none appeared. 
 
Mr. Barton Brierley, Planning and Building Director, presented the staff report (see official meeting packet for 
full report). 

Page 34



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (February 6, 2012) Page 4 of 6 

 
Mayor Andrews opened and closed the public testimony; no citizens appeared.  Staff recommended adoption.  
Mayor Andrews closed the public hearing. 
 
MOTION:   Howard/Shelton approving Ordinance No. 2012-2748 repealing an Annexation and 
Development Agreement for the McClure Property at 30295 Highway 99W, read by title only. 
 
Councilor McKinney expressed his sadness over this matter and the fact that the McClure’s lost their right to do 
with their property what is in their best interest, as well as for the community.  He spoke of them investing their 
lives into their property and the community of Newberg and the meaningful agreement they entered into with 
the Council and the City and spoke of his anger that people can no longer develop a piece of property they 
should have every right to.  He felt special interest groups and the governor have way too much say in the 
affairs of property owners and the people have voted to give them that right.  He grieved for such a special 
opportunity being lost.  He added this would be one of the worst votes he would have to participate in tonight 
and wished to thank the McClure family for being a good neighbor and investing a great deal of their time and 
money into what would have been a great asset to the City.  He suggested formally thanking the McClures at a 
later time as they were not present this evening. 
 
Councilor Rierson said he is also frustrated.  He was sorry that special interest groups and legal matters were 
taking a toll on the McClure family for something that would have appealed to so many levels of the 
community, but in the interest of their request he would be willing to accept the repeal. 
 
Councilor Wade Witherspoon addressed the Boy Scouts youth present this evening stating it was a great 
evening for them to be present to hear the powerful testimony and encouraged them to listen as they are the 
leaders of tomorrow and are being counted on to not let this kind of thing happen in the future. 
 
Councilor Denise Bacon stated she could not say more than what was already said and all her sympathies go to 
the McClures as they are wonderful people and this would have been a wonderful project for all of our best 
interests, not just their own.. 
 
Mayor Andrews agreed he was reluctant to cast a yes vote on this but he understands the need.  He said he has a 
great deal of empathy for the problems associated with the passage of the ballot Measures 37 and 49, the 
interpretation of those measures, and the adverse activities in the Court of Appeals.  He spoke of local 
government being close to the people and the importance of representing them.  He wished to thank the 
McClures for their patience with the battles against special interests and said it is a shame the development 
could not occur.  He said he also would support a separate motion to prepare a letter to the McClures expressing 
the Council’s sentiments. 
 
VOTE: Approving Ordinance No. 2012-2748 repealing an Annexation and Development Agreement for 
the McClure Property at 30295 Highway 99W, read by title only.  Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 
 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2012-2985 authorizing the city manager to 
negotiate a contract change order for the Fire Station 20 Remodel Project. 

TIME – 8:05 PM 
 
Mr. Jason Wuertz, Project Manager, presented the staff report (see official meeting packet for full report). 
 
Councilor Howard asked for clarification on what the possible additional projects could be.  Mr. Wuertz replied 
Exhibit “A” give a list of all the items being addressed currently and with approval of additional funds Group C 

Page 35



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (February 6, 2012) Page 5 of 6 

is the improvements they are considering that go over the contract amount.  He said there will not be enough to 
do them all and with the nature and timing of the project it is better to approach the possibility now, rather than 
wait for finalizing specific dollar amounts.  Councilor Howard asked if a necessary change occurs later will they 
still be able make this work by de-prioritizing other optional items.  Mr. Wuertz said there is no longer a risk of 
finding more as they are passed the demolition point where they discover those issues.  There is still a small 
contingency in the budget and a flexibility to take care of items independent of the contract. 
 
Councilor McKinney asked about some of the items on page 142 just being to polish the project and make it all 
fresh and new.  Mr. Wuertz said the goal is try to make this as complete of a project as they can make it.  
Councilor McKinney asked if he saw any reason why they may have to come back and ask for more changes.  
Mr. Wuertz replied he does not and spoke of this still being a part of the original grant funding, which has not 
been reached yet and briefly mentioned a slight possibility that grant could be increased. 
 
Councilor Shelton asked about the contributions to cover the entire bell tower expense.  Mr. Wuertz replied 
$25,000.00 was authorized from the contribution of the firefighters association but it cost less than what was 
allotted; Chief Hallman is going to see if they can still get the full contribution to cover other things. 
 
Mayor Andrews asked if the items in group C are only based on the negotiation for the availability of the rest of 
the $25,000.00 and how they plan to expend within this list.  Mr. Wuertz replied not all items on that list can be 
done, but they may be able to get more. 
 
MOTION:   Rierson/Bacon approving Resolution No. 2012-2985 authorizing the city manager to negotiate 
a contract change order for the Fire Station 20 Remodel Project.  Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 
 
IX. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
TIME – 8:16 PM 
 
Mayor Andrews opened discussion about the NDC “Merchant Lot” proposal from Public Comments. 
 
MOTION:   Witherspoon/Shelton to authorize staff to explore and bring back proposals for the Newberg 
Downtown Coalition’s Second Street “Merchant Lot” Parking Lot design concept request. 
 
Councilor Shelton Suggested staff look into the consideration for providing handicap parking with the eight 
spots required by the Americans with Disability Act (ADA) and how upgrades would be completed to the back 
entrances to allow handicap access as well.   
 
Councilor Witherspoon asked for consideration to be given to improving the walkway between the parking lot 
and First Street for easy access. 
 
VOTE:   To authorize staff to explore and bring back proposals for the Newberg Downtown Coalition’s 
Second Street “Merchant Lot” Parking Lot design concept request.  Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 
 
Mayor Andrews mentioned the transition process for Congresswoman Suzanne Bonamici and the plans for a 
Town Hall Meeting to introduce her on February 22, 2012, at the Public Safety Building. 
 
Councilor Howard gave updates on the Safe Routes to Schools project and efforts to encourage city wide 
participation in the upcoming Walk and Bike events. 
 

Page 36



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (February 6, 2012) Page 6 of 6 

MOTION:   McKinney/Rierson to have the Mayor draft a letter to the McClures to be signed by the City 
Council expressing their feelings about the action taken tonight and to offer support.  Motion carried (7 Yes/0 
No). 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:33 PM. 

 
ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this 5th day of March, 2012. 

 
 

    ____________________________ 
     Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 
 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 8th day of March, 2012. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor  

Page 37



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 38



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2750 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 5, 2012 
Order       Ordinance  XX  Resolution        Motion        Information ___ 
No. No. 2012-2750 No. 

SUBJECT:  System development charge deferral for 
affordable housing projects (First Reading) 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Barton Brierley, AICP 
Dept.:  Planning and Building Director   
File No.: G-12-002 

HEARING TYPE: ⌧ LEGISLATIVE  QUASI-JUDICIAL  NOT APPLICABLE 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2012-2750 allowing deferral of collection of system development charges for 
affordable housing projects until time of occupancy.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:     In May, 2009, the City adopted the Affordable Housing Action Plan.  One 
strategy in the plan is to consider reducing fees for affordable housing projects. 
 
The city created the Affordable Housing Action Committee to determine the best ways to implement the 
policies in the action plan.  One strategy the committee recommended was to allow affordable housing 
projects to defer payment of system development charges (SDCs) until time of occupancy.  Newberg 
currently assesses all system development charges at the time of building permit issuance.  Deferring 
payment of these fees until time of occupancy can reduce the upfront costs needed to construct the project, 
and may help a project to secure financing.  For example some projects have separate construction loans and 
ownership loans.  By paying the SDCs at occupancy, the builder would not have to finance the SDC costs 
during construction.  This can be done while still securing the same amount necessary for the public 
improvements funded with the SDCs. 
 
In 2011, the city council adopted a resolution allowing all projects to defer payment of SDCs until 
occupancy.  This resolution expired at the end of 2011.  The attached ordinance would extend this policy for 
all affordable housing projects.  The applicants would need to provide evidence that the project would be for 
low and moderate income families.  They also would need to enter into an agreement guaranteeing payment 
upon occupancy. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   The policy would still allow the same amount of SDCs to be collected.  By adopting 
the policy, the city would be foregoing the interest it otherwise would collect on the SDCs from the time of 
building permit issuance to the time of occupancy.  For a typical multi-family unit, this would amount to 
around $100.00.  On the other hand, a developer could save a thousand or more dollars in interest and 
financing costs, because construction loans may be at a much higher rate.  The city also would incur some 
staff costs in administering the agreements. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  The policy is consistent with the city’s Affordable Housing Action Plan’s 
goals of promoting affordable housing.  The deferral would provide assistance to make projects more 
affordable with minimal cost implications to the city. 
 
 
 

Page 39



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2750 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE ALLOWING DEFERRAL OF SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT 
CHARGES FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECTS 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. In May, 2009, the City adopted an affordable housing plan.  One strategy in the plan is to consider 

reducing fees for affordable housing projects. 
 

2. Newberg currently assesses all system development charges at the time of building permit issuance.  
Deferring payment of these fees until time of occupancy can reduce the upfront costs needed to 
construct the project, and may help a project to secure financing.  This can be done while still 
securing the same amount necessary for the public improvements funded with the SDCs. 
 

3. Thus, the purpose of this policy is to encourage the development of housing for low and very low 
income households by deferring payment of certain fees until time of occupancy.   

 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The following shall be added as Newberg Municipal Code §13.05.095:    

 
13.05.095  Collection of Charge for Affordable Housing Projects 

 
The city manager or designee may defer payment of system development charges until occupancy in 
accordance with the following provisions. 
 
A.  Payment of the following fees may be deferred: 
 

 1. Wastewater development charges. 
 2. Water development charges. 
 3. Storm drainage development charge. 
 4.  Transportation development charges 

 
B. The deferral is for construction of a new dwelling, including additions or remodels that 

create new dwelling units. 
 
C. The applicant shall demonstrate that the dwelling will be for a low income or very low 

income household, as defined in the Newberg Affordable Housing Action Plan, which uses 
guidelines from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  The city 
manager, or designee, shall determine whether the project qualifies, and may establish 
conditions to insure compliance.  The applicant may appeal the decision to the city council.  

 

 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2750 PAGE 1 

Page 40



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2750 PAGE 2 

D. The applicant shall enter into a development agreement with the city that guarantees 
payment of the deferred fees prior to occupancy.  The city shall place a lien on the property 
to guarantee payment of the fees. 

 
 E. The applicant shall pay all deferred fees prior to the city issuing a certificate of occupancy 

for the dwelling.  As an exception, the city manager may allow payment upon closing of 
escrow for sale of a property if that is anticipated immediately after issuance of the 
certificate.  In no case shall the fee be deferred more than six months after issuance of the 
certificate of occupancy. 

 
 F. If the applicant does not pay the deferred development charges when due, the city shall 

assess interest charges on the balance starting from the date of issuance of building permit.  
The interest rate shall be specified in the agreement. 

 
 

 EFFECTIVE DATE of this ordinance is 30 days after the adoption date, which is: April 4, 2012. 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 5th day of March, 2012, by the 
following votes:  AYE:   NAY:  ABSENT:    ABSTAIN:          

 
 
_________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 8th day of March, 2012. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 
 
 

 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
By and through  Affordable Housing Action   Committee at      7/14/2010          meeting.  Or,        None. 
     (committee name)                                (date)      (check if applicable) 

 

Page 41



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 42



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 5, 2012 
Order        Ordinance          Resolution              Motion  XX         Information ___ 
No.                   No.                        No. 

SUBJECT:  Accepting the Chehalem Valley 
Chamber of Commerce quarterly report for the 
Chehalem Valley Visitor Information Center. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Norma Alley, City Recorder 
Dept.: Administration 
File No.:  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Accept the Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce 2011-2012 second quarter report for the Chehalem 
Valley Visitor Information Center. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The City of Newberg helps financially support the Chehalem Valley Visitor Information Center.  As part of 
that support, the City Council has requested the Visitor Information Center provide quarterly budget reports. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
The City of Newberg is currently funding the Visitor Information Center with a contribution of 25% of the 
Transient Lodging Tax revenue. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:   
 
The City Council has determined that the operation of a Visitor Information Center is in the best interests of 
the city’s business community and promotes tourism and economic development in the Newberg area. 

Page 43



Visitor Center Launches New Brand 

 

The Chehalem Valley Chamber and Visitor 

is in the process of launching a new and up-

dated “brand”.  The new brand will be offi-

cially launched with the new Chamber and 

Visitor Center  website that is scheduled to 

go online in mid to late March.    

  

 

Visitor Center Highlights   

First Quarter 

   512  Walk-in Visitors,  11,751  Website Visits & 

1467  Phone Calls 

 

 

 

Atlantic & Travel & Leisure Magazine 

Espouse the Grandeur of Oregon Wine 

Country 
(excerpts form January 2012 article) 

The wines made it all worthwhile. Burgundy 

is the benchmark for Pinot Noir, but I actual-

ly found the Willamette's Pinots more con-

sistently impressive. My favorites stimulated 

not just my taste buds but also my imagina-

tion, like friends who are far more than mere-

ly pleasant company. And as time went on, I 

came to appreciate all that made the 

Willamette different from everywhere else. 

More and more wine regions were becoming 

facsimiles of Napa, and touring them some-

times felt like visiting an enological theme 

park, with tasting rooms instead of rides. The 

authenticity of the Willamette as an agricul-

tural area appealed to me. So did its resolute 

determination not to squander all that made it 

special in pursuit of something bigger, grand-

er, more profitable. Not Napa? That suited 

me fine. 

The Allison is the first hotel in the history of 

the Willamette in which the phrase "thread 

count" comes into play. There are fireplaces 

and tangerine bath salts in the guest rooms, 

cascading water and kinesis machines in the 

fitness center, boutique Steven Smith teas in 

 January 2012 

Chehalem Valley Chamber  

Visitors Center Report  

 

Page 44



   

  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Excellent Food & Service 
I love the food here. It's always spot on and 

served by very professional waiters. I love the 
staff because they know how food and wine 

work together and also how to provide excel-
lent service. It's really an excellent place to go 

while out wine tasting or if you wish a 
 romantic  dinner.  (Tripadvisor review January 

2012) 

 

 

 

 

2012 Visitor Center Services 

Recipe      Newberg, OR 

 

The Oregon Truffle Festival 
 

.The 2012 Oregon Truffle Festival was held 

at the Eugene Hilton Hotel in January.  The 3

-day event attracted 400-600 attendees that 

participated in a variety of Truffle focused 

events  and grand meals over the 3 day week-

end.   

 

The Chehalem Valley Chamber is working 

closely with a planning team made up of rep-

resentatives from Travel Yamhill Valley and 

the Chehalem Valley Chamber to facilitate 

the permanent move of the festival to Yam-

hill County in 2013. 

 

The Chehalem Valley Chamber hosted a 24 

hour wine and culinary tour in advance of 

this year’s Truffle Festival.  The tour was 

made up of guests from Southern California 

that are involved in the culinary industry.  

The tour was highlighted by a specially creat-

ed private five course dinner featuring truf-

fles  by 

Allen 

Routt at 

The 

Painted 

Lady. 

 

  

 

2012-2013 Newberg 

City Map Published 
 

Copies of the 2012-2013 

Newberg City  map are 

now available.  Supplies 

can be picked up at the 

Visitor Center.  The map 

features a map of New-

berg on one side and a 

Yamhill County map on 

the other with insets for 

Dundee and St. Paul 

Page 45



Newberg Visitor Information Center

2011 - 2012 Fiscal Year

Second Quarter Report

(Oct - Dec 2011)

Q2 YTD 11-12 Budget

REVENUE:

       City of Newberg $21,000.00 $42,000.00 $81,250.00

       Newberg Chamber contribution $24,144.03 $38,212.93 $51,000.00

       TOTAL REVENUES: $45,144.03 $80,212.93 $132,250.00

EXPENSES:

       Personnel $11,248.58 $21,982.43 $46,000.00

       Marketing $7,595.01 $14,376.74 $27,000.00

       Overhead/Utilities, etc. $10,800.44 $28,353.76 $43,750.00

       Capitol Improvements $15,500.00 $15,500.00 $15,500.00

       TOTAL EXPENSES: $45,144.03 $80,212.93 $132,250.00

Page 46



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION CITY HALL HOURS REVIEW Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 5, 2012 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution        Motion XX  Information ___ 
No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Six Month Review of City Hall Hours 
and Call Handler 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Daniel Danicic, City Manager 
Dept.:  Administration  

 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Move to approve a modification of City Hall hours to be from 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. M-F, eliminating the 
4:30 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. open time on Wednesdays. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
On September 6, 2011, the city council approved an adjustment to the City Hall hours.  The council also 
approved implementation of a call handler system for City Hall.  The council asked for a review of the 
implementation of both of these in six months.  This report provides that six month review. 
 
City Hall Hours  
 
Current Hours 
In October, 2011, the city went from an 8-5 M-F schedule for city hall, to the following office hours: 
 

Mon, Tues, Thurs, Fri:  8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. 
Weds:  8:30 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 

 
The extended hours on Wednesday evening were intended to allow customers who may have business 
with the city and who work regular office hours themselves to be able to come by at least one day after 
work. 
 
Review of Hours 
The change of hours has been a significant benefit to service at the front counter.  Prior to the change, for 
over half the working day there was only one support staff available at the permit center.  Professional staff 
were assigned as the second to greet customers and answer phones the other half of the day, resulting in less 
efficient service.  With the change, there now is two support staff available about ¾ of the day.  This allows 
us to serve multiple customers, to have the appropriate staff person available, and to have one staff person 
do tasks such as filing or attending meetings that cannot be done at the counter.  This has definitely boosted 
our efficiency. 
 
The utility billing counter formerly was closed at 4:30 p.m., so the change affected the opening hours, not 
the closing time.   
 
Staff has noted a few times each week when customers would have liked to come to city hall prior to 8:30 
a.m.  By and large those customers simply wait until 8:30 a.m. to transact business. 
 

Page 47



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION CITY HALL HOURS REVIEW Page 2 

Staff has monitored the number of customers arriving and calling during the extended Wednesday hours 
from 4:30 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.  For the period from October 24, 2011, to February 15, 2012, staff logged 
the following:  
 
Utility Billing:   Average of 1.8 customers per Wednesday (7 on shut off days)  
Other Departments:  About one per month 
 
On Wednesdays, the Finance Director and Assistant Finance Director staff the utility billing counter, as any 
other staff would need to be paid overtime for those hours.  With the light customer volume, the Finance 
Director felt this was not an efficient use of that staff.  A plans examiner and a planner staff the permit 
center counter.  Their work schedules are shifted an hour later those days.  All these staff move their desk 
work or laptops to the front counter and work there, since only a small part of their time is actually spent 
assisting customers.  The transfer back and forth has a significant reduction in efficiency and productivity. 
 
It seems clear that extending the hours on Wednesdays has not been an effective use of resources. 
 
The only complaints staff has received about the city hall hours have been related to utility billing on shut 
off days.  We do have 8-10 customers each month that arrive before 8:30 a.m. the day of shut offs to pay 
their past due utility bills.  Staff notes that there are multiple venues for customers to pay utility bills:  a drop 
off box, online, phone, and mail. 
 
Call Handler 
In November, 2011, we implemented a call handler for the city hall phone line.  Callers hear a recorded 
menu of options to choose which department they wish to reach.  The current configuration gives six 
options plus a “0” option to reach a live person.  It also includes a staff directory so callers can reach a 
specific person. 
 
Prior to implementing the call handler, over half the calls received at the city hall main lines were “pass 
through” calls, where the receptionist routed the caller to a different department.  Since implementing 
the call handler, these callers can pick from a menu and get directly to the department they are wanting.  
This has increased efficiency both for the staff and the customer.  Staff has seen a noticeable drop in the 
volume of pass through calls.  However, a large number of callers still prefer to use the “0” option and 
have the receptionist route their call.  Thus, there remains a need for a receptionist to route pass through 
calls. 
 
Staff has received just three complaints about the call handler.  One was a technical glitch that has been 
fixed.  The other two were regular customers who preferred not to use a call handler. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The change in office hours has helped staff to be much more efficient with their time.  
This has been especially important as the number of staff has been significantly reduced.  The extended 
Wednesday hours do not appear to be an effective use of resources, so changing those hours would result in 
greater efficiency. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  The city’s mission statement is:  "The City of Newberg serves its citizens, 
promotes safety, and maintains a healthy community."  The city can serve its citizens by being available to 
answer questions, provide information, and transact business as much as is fiscally prudent.  At this point, it 
appears the 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. schedule will continue to provide this service in a fiscally constrained 
environment. 

Page 48



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2990 PAGE 0 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 5, 2012 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2012-2990 
SUBJECT:  Ballot measure (operating levy) for May 
15, 2012 election for 9-1-1/Emergency 
Communications Center 

Contact Person for the RCA and Resolution: Dan 
Danicic 
Ballot Measure: Dawn Wilson 
Dept.: Administrator’s Office 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2012-2990 to place an operating levy on the May 15, 
2012, ballot to fund the local 9-1-1/Emergency Communications Center. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

 
There is a lack of revenue to operate the current, local 9-1-1/Emergency Communications Center for two 
main reasons: 1) a significant increase in costs and 2) a flat line in revenues each year for the next five years. 
There has been a decline in the economy, but a significant increase in call volume. 

 
The City has determined that it is likely that the City would continue to have a shortfall in revenue for the 
next five years, as well as a declining excise tax (9-1-1 tax revenue). Therefore, the City is trying to secure 
additional revenue in order to continue to operate the center. It is recommended that this measure be referred 
to voters.  

Functions of the Local, Newberg 9-1-1/Emergency Communications Center: 
• Answer all Emergency Police and Fire Calls 
• Medical Emergencies/Ambulance Needs 
• Search and Rescue 
• Crimes in Progress 
• Traffic Accidents 
• Fires 
• Power Outages 
• Natural Disasters 
• Hazardous Materials Accidents 
• After hours public works emergencies 
• Monitoring of jail cells 
• Non-emergency Public Assistance 

 Animal control services 
 Routine business calls 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: Passage of an operating levy could raise $1,250,000.00 at a 90% collection rate for five 
years for a total of $6.2 million for the entire five-year period. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: It is in the best interest of the community to keep a 9-1-1/Emergency 
Communications Center locally. Passage of this operating levy would fund the operations of the 9-1-
1/Emergency Communications Center in Newberg for five years.   

Page 49



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2990 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL PLACING A FIVE YEAR 
OPERATING LEVY FOR $0.95 PER $1,000.00 ASSESSED VALUE PER 
YEAR BEGINNING FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 FOR THE OPERATION OF 
THE LOCAL 9-1-1/EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER BEFORE 
THE VOTERS AT THE MAY 15, 2012, ELECTION; AS WELL AS 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY ATTORNEY AND ELECTIONS OFFICER TO DO 
ALL NECESSARY ACTS 

 
RECITALS: 

 
1. Since 1999, the City's population has grown by 59%, and 9-1-1 communications’ calls have 

increased nearly fivefold. 
 

2. This measure is being referred to voters because the Council has determined there is a lack of 
revenue to operate the current, local 9-1-1/Emergency Communications Center.  
 

3. The City has determined it is likely that the City would continue to have shortfalls in revenue for the 
next five years, as well as declining excise tax (9-1-1 tax revenue). Therefore, the City is trying to 
secure additional revenue in order to continue to operate the center. 
 

4. In order to maintain Newberg’s local 9-1-1/Emergency Communications Center at current service 
levels, the Council is referring a five year operating levy to the May 15, 2012, election. 

 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1.   The purpose of the operating levy is to provide funds to continue to operate the local, 9-1-

1/Emergency Communications Center.  
 
2.   A tax rate of $0.95 per $1,000.00 of assessed value for five-years would begin in fiscal year 2012-

2013.  
 

3.   The present tax base is inadequate to maintain current, local 9-1-1/Emergency Communications 
Center.  

 
4. The tax rate operating levy would raise approximately $1,250,000.00 at a 90% collection rate for 

five years for a total of $6.2 million for the entire five-year period. 
 

5. The proposed taxes are outside the limitations imposed by Section 11, Article XI of the Oregon 
Constitution.  

 
6. These funds would be used to operate the 9-1-1/Emergency Communications Center. If there are any 

funds remaining, those funds would be used to purchase and replace necessary equipment for the 
center.   

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2990 PAGE 1 

 

Page 50



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2990 PAGE 2 

7. This ballot title will be filed with the City elections officer immediately upon passage. The ballot 
title and explanatory statement are attached as Exhibit “A” and by this reference incorporated. The 
city attorney is directed and authorized to make final approval of these documents, as well as to 
make any necessary changes. 
 

8. The city elections officer is directed to publish all necessary notices, as well as to do all other 
necessary acts and deeds that may be required to conduct the election concerning this measure.  
 

9. The elections officer is directed to certify the ballot title to the Yamhill County Clerk for placement 
before the voters at the May 15, 2012, election. 
 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the date of adoption, which is: March 5, 2012. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 5th day of March, 2012. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 8th day of March, 2012. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 
 
 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
By and through City Council at the 02/21/2012 Work Session. 

By and through the Budget Committee at the 02/28/2012 meeting. 
 
 
 

Page 51



Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution No. 2012-2990 

Total pages: 3 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2990 PAGE 3 

 

Page 52



Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution No. 2012-2990 

Total pages: 3 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2990 PAGE 4 

 

Page 53



Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution No. 2012-2990 

Total pages: 3 

 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2990 PAGE 5 

 

Page 54


	Agenda
	Resolution No. 2012-2991 - College St. Project
	Resolution No. 2012-2992 - Fire Station 20 Remodel Project
	Council Minutes 2/6/2012
	Ordinance No. 2012-2750 - SDC Charge Deferral
	Chamber of Commerce 2nd Quarter Visitor Center Report
	City Hall Hours and Call Handler Update
	Resolution No. 2012-2990 - Dispatch Levy



